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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURTY
FOR THE FASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

CIVIL COMPLAINT
United States, )
)
Plaintif, )
)
)
vE, ) CASENO. ~
)
Betty Bouchon, Bouchon Limited Family )
Partnership, and Sapphire Corp., )
)
Defendants, )

The United States of America alloges!

1,

2,

This action is brought to enforce the Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act

of 1968, as amended by the Falr Floysing Amendments Act of 1988, 42 1.8.C, §§ 360!

- ef seq.

This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U,5.C, §§ 1331 and 1345 and
42 1.8.C. § 3614, Venue is proper under 28 U.8.C. § 1391(b) as the claims alleged
herein arose in the Bastorn District of Louisiana,

The Bouchon Limited Family Partnership owns a sixteen-unit apartment building located
af 4919 Canal Street, New Orleans, Louisiana, The Bouuhoh Limited Family Partnership
offers apartments in that building for rent. Those apartmertts ave dwellings within the
meaning of the Fair FHousing Aci, 42 U,8.C. § 3602(b).

Defendant Bouchon Limited Family Partnership is 8 Louisiana pattnership with its
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principal place of business in Metairie, Louisiana.

Defendant Sapphire Corporation is a Louisiana corporation with its principal place of
buginess in Metairie, Louisiana, Defendant Sapphire Corporation is the general partner
of the Bouchon Limited Family Partnership,

Defendant Betty Bouchon is a limited partner in the Bouchon Limited Family
Partniership, and manapes end operates the sixieen-unit apartment building located at
4919 Canal Street, New Qrleans, Louisiana on behalf of the Bouchon Limited Family
Partnership,

Defendant Bouchon Limited Family Parinership has the right to direet and control
Defendant Belty Bouchon’s actions as menager and operator of the apartma‘nt building
l-qcated at 4919 Canal Street, New Orleans, Lovisiana,

While acting with the actual or apparent authority of the Bouchon Limited Family
Parinership, Betty Bouchon showed and offered far rent an apartment locﬁted in the
sixteen-unit apartment building located at 4919 Canal Strect, New Orleans, Louistana,
The Greater New Orleans Fair Housing Action Center conducted a series of tests in
Septerber 2009 to ovaluate the Defendants” compliance with the Fair Housing Act.
Testing is the simulation of a housing transaction that compares responses glven by
housing providers to different types of home-seekers to determine whether illegal
diserimination is oceurring, The testing undertaken by the Greater New Orleans Fair

Housing Actlon Cenler revealed that Defendant Betty Bouchon engaged in

- housing practices that digcriminate on the basis of race ot color at the sixteen-unit

apartment building located at 4919 Canal Strect, New Orleans, Louisiana,
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The testing conduoted by the Greater New Orleans Fair Housing Action Center

revesled that Defendant Betty Bouchon refused to return phone calls from prospective

Afican-American renters, but did return phons calls .ﬁ'om prospective white renters, The

testing further revealed that Defendant Beity Bouchon made statements fo prospective

white renters indicating that she would not rent to African Americans, The testing further |

revealed that Betty Bouchon indicated to an Afiican-American prospective tenant that a

unit in the sixteen-unit apartment bullding located at 4919 Canal Street, New

Orleans, Louisiana was not available for rent when it was, in fact, available,

By the conduct set forth above, Defendants Beity Bouchon and the Bouchon Family

Limited Partnership have;

a. Refused to negotiate for the rental of, or otherwise made unavailable or denied a
dwelling to a person on the bésis of race or color, in violation of Seetion 804(a) of
the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.8,C, § 3604(a);

b, Discriminated in the terms, conditions, or privileges of rental of a dwelling
because of tace or color, in violation of Section 804(b) of the Fair Housing Adt,
42 U.8.C, § 3604(b);

¢, Made statements with respect to the sélc or rental of dwellings that indicate a
preference, Hmitation, or diserimination based on race or color, in violation of
Section 804(c) of the Fair Housing Act, 42 1.8.C. § 3604(c); and

d. Reprosented because of race or color that a dwelling is not available for
inspection or renlal when such dwelling is in fact so available, in violation of
Section 804(d) of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S,C. § 3604(),

The discriminatory actions of Defendants Betty Bouchon and the Bouchon Family
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Limited Partnership were intentional, willful, and taken in  disregard of the requirements
of the Fair Housing Act, |
The conduct of Defendants Betty Bouchon and the Bouchon Family Limited Partnership
set forth above constituies:
& A pattern or practice of resistance to the full enjoyroent of rights granted by the
Fair Housing Act, 42 U.8.C, §§ 3601-3619; or |
b. A denial to a group of persons of rights granted by the Fair Housing Act,
42 U.S.C. §§ 3601-3619, which denial raises an issue of general public
importance,
Persons who may have been the victims of Defendants Betty Bouchon and the Bouchon
Family Limited Partnership’s discriminatory housing practices are aggrieved persons as
defined in 42 U,8,C. § 3602(1), and may have suffered injuries as a result of the conduct
described above, |
The discriminatory actions of Defendants Betty Bouchon and the Bouchon Family
Limited Partnership were intentional, willful, and taken in disregard of the requirements

of the Fair Housing Act,

WHEREFORE, the United States prays that the court enter an ORDER that:

1.

Declares that Defendants Betty Bouchon and the Bouchon Family Limited Pattnership®s
conduct, as alleged herein, violates the Fair Housing Act,

Bnjoins Defendants Betty Bouchon and the Bouchon Family Limited Partnership, theiv
officers, employees, agents, successors and all other persons in active coneert or

participation with them, from further;
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a. Refusing to rent, after the meking of & bona fide offer, or refusing o negotiate for
the rental of, or otherwise make unavailable or deny, a dwelling to any petson
because of race or calor;

b, Discririnating against any person in the terms, conditions, or privileges of rental
of a dwelling because of race or color;

3 Representing to any person because of race or color that any dwelling is not
avaifable for inspection, sale or rental when such dwelling is in fact so available;

d. Discriminating on the basis of race ageinst any person in any aspect of the rental
of dwellings, pursuant to 42 U.S.C, § 3614()(1)(A); and

e Failing or refusing to take such steps that may be necessary to prevent the
reeurrence of any discriminatory conduct in the future and to eliminate, to the
extent practicable, the effects of the Defendants’ unlawful housing practices,

Awards monetary damages, puréuemt to 42 U.8.C. § 3614(d)(1)(B), to all persons harmed

by Defendants Betty Bouchon and the Bouchon Family Limited Partnership’s

discriminatory practices; and

Assesses & civil pepalty against Defendants Betty Bouchon and the Bouchon Family

Limited Partnership in an amount authorized by 42 U.8.C. § 3614(d)(1)(C), to vindicate

the public interest,



Case 2:11-cv-02157 Document1 Filed 08/29/11 Page 6 of 6

The United States further prays for such additional relief as the interests of justice may require.

Dated: S;g /z 7 ,2011

JIM LETTEN
United States® Attorney
Bastern District of Louisiana

Assistant U.S. Attorney
650 Poydras Street, 16" Floor
New Orleans, Louisiana 70130
Phone: (504) 680-3000

Fax: (504) 680-3186

ERIC H. HOLDER, Jr.
Attorney General

A - a,

THOMAS E. PEREZ '
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division

STEVEN H. ROSENBAUM
Chief

REBECCA B. BOND .
Deputy Chief Q\ '

SEAN R. KEVENEY

Trial Attorney

Housing and Civil Enforcement Section
Civil Rights Division

U.S, Department of Justice

950 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W,
Northwestern Building, 7th Floor
Washington, D.C, 20530

Phone; (202) 514-4838

Fax: (202)514-1116
sean,r.keveney@usdoj.gov




